
 
 

Knox County Board  
Member Packet 

 
Regular Meeting of the Board 

February 24, 2016 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
This packet contains the meeting’s agenda, accompanying 
documentation, and minutes of recent standing committee meetings.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Compiled by Scott G. Erickson 
Knox County Clerk 



KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE   200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET   GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 
(309) 345-3815   FAX: (309) 345-3801   WEBSITE:  WWW.KNOXCLERK.ORG 

 

THE COUNTY OF KNOX 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

 

 

SCOTT G. ERICKSON 
KNOX COUNTY CLERK 

 
SHIELA PARKIN  JANE SMITH 
SARA VARNER    PAM COON 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 
OF THE KNOX COUNTY BOARD ON FEBRUARY 24, 2016 

 
 

In accordance with action taken at its January 27, 2016, regular 

meeting, the Knox County Board ordered that members of the Knox County 

Board will hereby meet in regular session at 6:00 p.m. on February 24, 

2016, at the Knox County Courthouse, 200 South Cherry Street, Second 

Floor Main Courtroom, Galesburg, Illinois. 

Along with this notice is the agenda of matters to be discussed at said 

meeting.  The agenda can also be accessed through our web site at 

www.KnoxClerk.org. 

 

DATED: February 19, 2016            ______________________ 
                    Scott G. Erickson 

Knox County Clerk and 
Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board 

 
 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 1 

 

Knox County Board 
 

Regular Monthly Meeting – February 2016 
Knox County Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois 

Main Courtroom, 2nd Floor 
February 24, 2016 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

Special Events 

   
Opening Ceremonies 
6:00 p.m.  Call to Order (Chairman) 
   

  Roll Call (Clerk) 
   

  Declaration of Quorum (Chairman) 
   

  Proclamation (Sheriff) 
   

  Presentation of the Colors by Boy Scout Troop #233 and 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America (Chairman) 

   

  Invocation (Lt. Brian Bump of the Salvation Army, 
Galesburg) 

   

  Additions to the Agenda (for discussion only) 
 
Public Comment 
 
Consent Agenda (R/C) 
Item 1 Approve Minutes of the Regular and Closed Board Meeting on 

January 27, 2016. 
Item 2 Approve Claims by Members for per diem and mileage for the 

Meeting of February, 2016 and other claims for per diem 
from Meetings. 

Item 3 Presentation Sales tax and various taxes for month of November 2015 
in the amounts of $102,633.94 and $16,177.76 and public 
safety tax in the amount of $175,076.94. 

   
Items for the Chairman 
Item 4 Presentation Presentation from Gilson Boy Scout Troop #233 

(Jefferson) 
Item 5 Approve R/C Annual Report on State of Knox County Health Department 
Item 6 Approve R/C Appointment to Galesburg Sanitary District of Kenneth 

Swanson. 
Item 7 Approve R/C Appointment to Williamsfield Fire Protection District of 

Roger L. Fitchpatrick 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 2 

   
Report – Committee on Finance, Insurance, Treasurer, Judicial, and Clerk 
Item 8 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 9 Approve  Approve Animal Kill Claims for 2015 
Item 10 Approve R/C Resolution on Deeds of Conveyance for Various Parcels 
Item 11 Approve R/C Resolution Calling for an Equitable Solution to Issues 

Related to Increased Juror Compensation (Johnson) 
Item 12 Approve R/C Approve Bids Submitted for Furnishing Various Motor 

Fuels Tax Aggregates to Various Townships for 2016 
Maintenance Season Section 16-XX000-00-GM. (Hwy) 

Item 13 Approve R/C Resolution on 2016 Motor Fuel Maintenance. (Hwy) 
   
Report – Building Committee             
Item 14 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 15 Approve R/C Resolution Allocating Funds from Landfill Dump Fess to 

Building Committee. 
   
Report  – Committee on Sheriff, Jail, Courthouse, Mary Davis Home, and Animal Control. 
Item 16 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 17 Approve R/C Purchase of Smart 9-1-1 System 
Item 18 Approve R/C Replacement of Bad Sensors in Thermostats at 

Courthouse. 
   
Report – Committee on Nursing Home, Assessor, Zoning, GIS, and Recorder 
Item 19 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 20 Approve R/C Resolution for Fund Transfer from the Knox County 

Nursing Home Tax Levy Account to the Knox County 
Nursing Home General Account. 

    
Report – Committee on Highway and Landfill 
Item 21 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
   
Reports – External Committees Assigned to Board Members 
Item 22 Presentation Knox County Board of Health (Davidson) 
Item 23 Presentation Galesburg Convention and Visitors Bureau (Bondi) 
Item 24 Presentation 9-1-1 Committee (Knapp) 
Item 25 Presentation Knox County Area Partnership for Economic Development 
Item 26 Presentation Prairie Hills Resources Board (Johnson) 
Item 27 Presentation United Council of Counties (Johnson) 
Item 28 Presentation Ad Hoc Committee for Technology Services (Bondi) 
   
Claims Against the County – R/C 
Item 29  Approve R/C Opening of Budget for Line Item Changes 
Item 30 Presentation Presentation of Proposed Budget Line Item Changes. 
Item 31 Approve R/C Approve Budget Line Item Changes. 
Item 32 Approve R/C Claims against Knox County, Illinois, for the period of       

January 28, 2016 through February 24, 2016 (ordering that 
invoices be accepted and approved and that the County 
Clerk and County Treasurer be authorized and directed to 
issue County Warrants in payment of the bills) 

   
Statements of General Concern 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 3 

Item 33 Presentation Statements of General Concern from Board Members 
(Conducted in voting rank order.  No Debate) 

   
Announcements 
Item 34 Presentation The next regular meeting will be held on Wednesday, 

March 23, 2016, 6:00 p.m., at the Knox County 
Courthouse, Galesburg, IL 

   
Closing Ceremonies 
Item 35 Presentation Adjournment of meeting until next scheduled meeting of 

the Board. 
 
* CONSENT AGENDA:  All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the 
Board and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
Member or citizen so requests; in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will 
be considered separately. 
 
** Action item to be used only if previous Motion to Remove from Table is approved. 
 
VOTING CHART:  R/C = Roll Call Vote; Voice = Voice Vote; 2/3 = 2/3rds Vote 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  Except for emergency personnel, please turn off all cellular telephones and paging 
devices during the meeting. 



1 
 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
KNOX COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
January 27, 2016 

 
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF KNOX  ) 

 
 Proceedings of the Regular Meeting of the Knox County Board held at the Knox County 
Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois on Wednesday, January 27, 2016, at 6:10 p.m. 
 
 The Meeting was called to order by County Board Chairman Brian Friedrich and upon 
roll call the following Members reported present: 
 
    District 1 Lyle Johnson  

District 2 Greg “Chops” Bacon 
District 3 Barbara Foster 
District 4 George Knapp 
District 5 Brian Friedrich 
District 1 Cheryl Nache 
District 2 John Hunigan 
District 3 Pamela Davidson 
District 4 David Erickson 
District 5 Ricardo “Rick” Sandoval 
District 1 Richard Conklin 

    District 3 Trisha Hurst 
District 4 Shawn Pitman 
District 5 Jeff Jefferson 

 
And those absent:  District 2 Robert “Bob” Bondi 
 
 Also present were County Treasurer Robin Davis, State’s Attorney John Pepmeyer, 
County Sheriff David Clague, and County Clerk Scott Erickson. 
  
 Sheriff Dave Clague delivered the proclamation. Chairman Friedrich led the Members in 
the pledge to the flag. Rev. Leigh Nygard of Galesburg delivered the invocation. 
 
 Chairman Friedrich asked for additions or deletions to the agenda. There were none. 
 

Chairman Friedrich asked for public comments. Jerry Ryberg again addressed the Board 
concerning allegations of sexual harassment at the landfill. He also spoke of racism in 
connection with an incident which occurred January 28, 2011. Trash hauler Jim Harris was 
banned from the landfill, even though the judge and the jury found him not guilty. Racism had a 
huge part in this. Jim Harris lost his business and his income. He should be compensated by the 
County Board.  



2 
 

Dan Swanson introduced himself as a candidate for the 74th State representative seat. 
There is a vacancy as a result of Don Moffit’s retirement. Mr. Swanson is a 27 year veteran. He 
is visiting different organizations in the district and considered it to be a privilege to attend this 
Meeting.  

 
Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Foster to approve the 

following items of the consent agenda: 1) minutes of the Regular and Closed Board Meeting on 
December 23, 2015, 2) claims by Members for per diem and mileage for the Meeting of January 
27, 2016 and other claims for per diem from meetings, and 3) sales tax and various taxes for the 
month of October 2015 in the amounts of $102,769.39 and $21,385.82 and public safety tax in 
the amount of $174,034.36. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, 
Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Hunigan, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and 
Jefferson—(14). Noes—(0). Motion carried.  

 
An update from Court Appointed Special Advocates of Knox County, CASA, was 

presented by executive director Sara Robison. She provided a handout to the Board Members. 
This organization provides advocates to children who are victims of abuse and neglect through 
the use of trained community volunteers. Consistently half of all of their cases involve substance 
abuse/misuse. Of those cases that involve drug use in 2015, 43% involved methamphetamine use 
or 20% of the total number of cases. Domestic violence was involved in 30% of those cases.   

In 2015 they had two large successful fundraisers. There have been smaller fundraisers as 
well. In the last year, they were awarded some additional grant funding. They were able to 
expand their volunteer education and some programming. In the future they would like to 
include more children served directly by the volunteers. She thanked the Board for their 
continued supported.  

 
The Finance, Insurance, Treasurer, Judicial, and Clerk Committee report was presented 

by Member Bacon. The monthly reports and committee minutes are included in the packets. 
 
Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Sandoval to approve the 

resolution on the deed of conveyance for parcel number 99-16-388-01. Roll call vote is recorded 
as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Hunigan, Davidson, 
Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(14). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Johnson to approve 

membership dues for Prairie Hills Resource in the amount of $225.00. Roll call vote is recorded 
as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Hunigan, Davidson, 
Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(14). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Johnson to approve Tri 

County Regional Recycling Program invoice in the amount of $10,800.00. Roll call vote is 
recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Hunigan, 
Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(14). Noes—(0). Motion 
carried. 

 



3 
 

Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Nache to approve 
payment for Knox County Area Partnership in the amount of $5,000.00. Member Bacon 
explained that this is the organization that replaced GREDA. Currently Chairman Friedrich sits 
on this board. He cannot say enough good things about this organization. The County could not 
duplicate the services that this organization is able to provide. They have been very instrumental 
with the Love’s Project. The County needs somebody who is knowledgeable to attract new 
businesses to Knox County. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, 
Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Hunigan, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and 
Jefferson—(14). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Pitman to approve the 

resolution to abate the levy for General Obligation Alternate Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A and 
Series 2010B for tax year 2015 (Build America Bonds and Recovery Zone Bonds.) Roll call vote 
is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Hunigan, 
Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(14). Noes—(0). Motion 
carried. 

 
Member Bacon then addressed the subject of the e-pay system that is in place to pay fines 

through the Circuit Clerk’s Office. This matter was discussed during the finance committee 
meeting. He checked with Circuit Clerk Kelly Cheesman and this e-pay system program has 
been in place since 2001.  

Ms. Cheesman stated that traffic tickets can be paid on line.  
 
The Building Committee report was presented by Building Committee Co-Chairman 

George Knapp. The monthly reports and committee minutes are included in the packets. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Knapp and seconded by Member Bacon to approve 
payment to Klingner and Associates for bidding consultation fees in the amount of $372.00. Roll 
call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, 
Hunigan, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(14). Noes—
(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Member Knapp reported that recently a meeting was held with the architects, the 
installers of the HVAC system, the Sheriff and others. This was a very thorough positive 
meeting. The architects listened to their concerns and took notes. It was noted that the previous 
complaints that were made when the system was still under warranty had not been taken care of. 
Indication was given that those concerns would be taken care of.  
 Sheriff Dave Clague agreed with Member Knapp. This is one of the better meetings as far 
as the Courthouse is concerned. These professionals did take a tour of some of the problem areas. 
They also looked at the condensers that are outside. They are working at getting things back to 
normal again.  
 
 Member Bacon added that a contractor had contacted the County regarding repairs to the 
fire escape at the Courthouse. This contractor will be looking at this and thinks that he can repair 
this at a lower cost. 
 



4 
 

 The Sheriff, Jail, Courthouse, Animal Control, Mary Davis Home, and Annex Committee 
report was presented by Committee Chairman Ricardo Sandoval. The monthly reports and 
committee minutes are included in the packets. Currently there are 19 residents at the Mary 
Davis Home and 2 of those are from Knox County. The Knox County Jail has 121 inmates and 
of that number 15 are federal prisoners. They are working on getting the licenses for the new 
radios for the squad cars. Sheriff Clague reminded Members that Motorola had informed them 
from the beginning that there could be a delay getting the actual licenses. They had done their 
research and found two or three possible frequencies in the bi-state area. They are working on it. 
The Sheriff’s Office might be waiting until June or perhaps this licensing could be accomplished 
earlier than that.  
 

The Nursing Home, Assessor, Zoning, GIS, and Recorder Committee report was 
presented by Member Jefferson. The monthly reports and committee minutes are included in the 
packets. 

 
Motion was made by Member Jefferson and seconded by Member Pitman to approve 

ZBA Case #CU-04-15—Request for Conditional Use Permit to allow “wholesale & retail sales 
of agricultural/commercial, perishable foods, such as meat from livestock and animal products 
raised on premises under the “A” District”—Filed by Rich and Nicole Collins, Knoxville, 
Illinois.  

Supervisor of Assessments Chris Gray explained that actually the Collins’s were 
operating this business prior to the County’s knowledge. They were raising lambs and chickens 
and having them butchered. They were then selling and storing these animal products on their 
property. They did have to get a USDA permit and license. They also have to be licensed 
through the Health Department. This is a unique situation. It was decided that the best approach 
to remedy this situation would be for them to obtain a conditional use permit. Currently the 
business owners report that no one is coming to the property to purchase the meat but instead 
they are delivering it to various local restaurants. The Zoning Board of Appeals did approve this 
request. The business owners are not planning on having any kind of large store, because they 
are not planning on having a lot of animals. They are not looking at having a grocery store on 
this site. There could be some minimal traffic.  

Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, 
Nache, Hunigan, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). 
Pass—Conklin—(1). Motion carried. 

 
Motion was made by Member Jefferson and seconded by Member Knapp to approve text 

amendments to the Zoning Resolution: AM-13-15 to add clarity to the definition of “Structure” 
and AM-14-15 to clarify “Road Frontages” under Article 8. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: 
Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Hunigan, Davidson, Erickson, 
Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(14). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
The Highway and Landfill Committee report was presented by Committee Chairman 

Shawn Pitman. The monthly reports and committee minutes are included in the packets. The 
tonnage is down in the winter but it has been higher than last year. The Landfill is still in the 
black.  

 



5 
 

Motion was made by Member Pitman and seconded by Member Johnson to approve bids 
for diesel fuel for the Highway and Landfill Departments. Specific information is included in the 
packets. Member Pitman reported that this is a decrease of 55% compared to last year. There 
were two bidders and approximately $25,000.00 difference between these two bids. The low bid 
was submitted by West Central FS. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, 
Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Hunigan, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, 
Pitman and Jefferson—(14). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
Motion was made by Member Pitman and seconded by Member Hurst to approve the bid 

for a secondary heat unit at the Landfill in the total amount of $5,492.00 to J.P. Benbow 
Plumbing and Heating Co, Inc. Member Pitman explained that this unit will be used in the shop. 
This is a secondary unit that is fueled by LP. Member Bacon added that the other heater is fueled 
by recycled oil. However, a lot of the machinery is now covered by maintenance agreements and 
the landfill does not get that oil. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, 
Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Hunigan, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, 
Pitman and Jefferson—(14). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
Motion was made by Member Knapp and seconded by Member Johnson to approve bid 

for a roll off container for the Landfill in the total amount of $11,582.00. 
Member Pitman reported that Landfill Administrator Jerry Reynolds had presented this 

bid proposal to him. They have been looking at the market. Member Pitman would like to look 
on line for any used containers that are in decent shape and try to secure a lower price on this 
container. It might take a month or two but it might save the County some money. Mr. Reynolds 
stated that this bid would expire in 60 days from the date prepared. Member Pitman stated that he 
hoped that they could get a better price.  

Motion was made by Member Davidson and seconded by Member Bacon to table this 
motion. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, 
Hunigan, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(13). Noes—
Johnson—(1). Motion to table carried. 

 
Member Davidson presented the monthly report from the Knox County Board of Health. 

Recently the Health Department renewed Michelle Fishburn’s contract. They are looking at how 
they can better serve their clients. Their web site is up and operational. One feature allows clients 
to schedule their appointments. Their data base also allows clients to view their records. This has 
been very helpful for the “no call, no show” clients. Reminders can be e-mailed to clients. The 
Health Department is still looking for another Board Member to fill the position of Jackie 
Turner. Those interested should contact the Health Department.  

 
Member Knapp presented the monthly report from the 9-1-1 committee. He reported that 

their meeting was held January 21. They discussed a couple things but no commitment was 
made. It was reported that the 9-1-1 program in Stark County is really having problems. They 
have a smaller population and are considering joining another county. The committee also 
continued discussion on getting 9-1-1 numbers available to put on County properties to aid 
emergency responders. There was still continued discussion on where these numbers should be 
placed. Member Knapp would prefer that these numbers are placed on the mail box. They should 
not be more than twenty feet from the road.  



6 
 

Sheriff Clague reported that he had recently attended meetings in Springfield. There is 
growing concern for the last ten months about the lack of money coming from Springfield, 
primarily due to the Governor withholding it. Recently Knox County did receive a check in 
payment of the months of May 2015-September 2015.  

The Board may have to consider passing a resolution to define the appropriate place to 
put the 9-1-1 numbers. Emergency responders depend on these numbers to locate some 
addresses. There needs to be a designated place for these numbers. There is the issue of what to 
do if an ordinance is passed and a homeowner is not compliant. He will be looking into this and 
perhaps in the next month or two he will have a resolution for the Board to look at.  

 
 Chairman Friedrich presented the monthly report from the Knox County Area Partnership 
for Economic Development. Ken Springer brought an update to the Board. He thanked the Board 
for their continued support. He reported that they had a good fourth quarter and were very busy. 
He spoke of a upcoming event at Hy-Vee on North Henderson Street in Galesburg. Their gas 
station will be opening soon and they will be offering E-85. This is good for the region and good 
for agriculture. He also spoke of the upcoming annual meeting of the Knox County Area 
Partnership. Soon they will be presenting their Strategic Plans. Chairman Friedrich added that at 
this last meeting a representative was there from Galesburg School District #205. He shared 
some of the challenges that they are going through and they are very similar to the challenges 
that the County faces.  
 
 Member Johnson presented the monthly report from the Prairie Hills Resources Board. 
He presented a handout containing the annual report, which includes their projects for the 
previous year. During their recent meeting he was re-elected as chairman of this board. This year 
their annual Prairie Table Fundraising Dinner will be held in Galesburg. In addition to working 
with land conservation projects they continue to offer loans to small businesses.  
 
 Member Johnson presented the monthly report from the United Council of Counties. 
There was a council meeting January 25th. A legislative update was presented. It looks like 
nothing will be moving in the Legislature until after the primary election. The deadlock between 
the Governor and the Legislature continues. He did provide a copy of a resolution to County 
Clerk Scott Erickson. The Board needs to review this and approve this at the next Board 
Meeting. This resolution has to do with jury costs. The State wants to increase juror fees from 
$25 to $50. This would have a large financial impact especially if there were several large cases 
in any single year. UCCI wants all of the counties to approve this resolution. The feeling is that 
this is still another unfunded mandate. This could cost a lot of counties a lot of money. He also 
brought back a copy of the wage study for the County to complete and mail back in. The next 
meeting is to be a legislative luncheon and he is hoping to see several legislators in attendance.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Jefferson and seconded by Member Foster to approve the 
claims against Knox County, Illinois, for the period of December 24, 2015-January 27, 2016 
(ordering that invoices be accepted and approved and that the County Clerk and County 
Treasurer be authorized and directed to issue County Warrants in payment of the bills.) Roll call 
vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Nache, Hunigan, 
Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(14). Noes—(0). Motion 
carried. 



7 
 

STATEMENTS OF GENERAL CONCERN 
 
Member Johnson, Member Bacon, Member Foster, and Member Knapp had no 

comments at this time. 
 
Chairman Friedrich thanked those Board Members that serve on outside committees.  
 
Member Nache and Member Hunigan had no comments at this time. 
 
Member Davidson commented that early voting will be starting soon and encouraged 

people to exercise their right to vote. 
 
Member Erickson, Member Sandoval, Member Conklin, Member Hurst, Member Pitman 

and Member Jefferson had no comments at this time.  
 
The next Regular Meeting will be held on Wednesday, February 24, 2016, 6:00 p.m., at 

the Knox County Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois. 
 
Motion was made by Member Sandoval and seconded by Member Erickson to adjourn 

from this Meeting. Voice vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—(14). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
Open Meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m.  

 



















































RESOLUTION NUMBER ________________ 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN ADDITIONAL GATE FEE TO BE 
CHARGED AT THE KNOX COUNTY LANDFILL  

 
 WHEREAS, Knox County owns and operates a County Landfill that 
generates a significant amount of business; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of Illinois is not expected to live up to its obligations 
for funding of certain line items in the County budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Knox County Board needs to find additional methods of 
funding for its maintenance and operation programs. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of the County 
Board of the County of Knox, State of Illinois, that an additional one dollar ($1.00) 
per ton dump fee be imposed on patrons at the Knox County Landfill.  Funds 
generated from this additional fee will be allocated to the Building Fund and shall 
be used offset expenses for the upkeep, maintenance, and improvement of Knox 
County government facilities. 
 
 
 
Resolved and passed this 24th day of February, 2016. 
 
      Knox County Board 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Brian Friedrich, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: __________________________ 
      Scott G. Erickson, County Clerk 
 

























 

Nursing Home-Assessor-GIS-Zoning-Recorder  
Committee Meeting Minutes 

February 16, 2016 
 

Present:   Chairman, Jeff Jefferson  
Vice Chairman, George Knapp;  Members:  Bob Bondi, and John Hunigan  

Absent:    Cheryl Nache 
Also Present:  Rachel Secrist, Nursing Home Adm. Carol Hallam, County Recorder & 
Chris Gray, Supervisor of Assessments/Zoning Adm.  Also, Hailey, an Intern at the 
Knox County Nursing Home. 
 
     The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Committee Chairman Jefferson and a 
quorum was declared with 4 members present.   
     There were no additions to the agenda. 
     Motion made by Member Bondi and seconded by Member Knapp to approve the 
minutes of the January 2016 Committee meeting.  Approved unanimously. 
     There was no public comment. 
         
Administrative Reports 
 
Recorder 
     County Recorder, Carol Hallam reported main topics and presented bills for her 
department: 

• Recordings were up in count, but many documents were ones that did not 
require fees to be paid on them. 

• Pam Coons, who worked in her office previously, is transferring back to her 
office from the County Clerk’s office. 

 
Assessment, GIS, & Zoning 
     Supervisor of Assessments/Zoning Administrator, Chris Gray presented written 
reports for the Assessors, GIS and Zoning departments and bills for each department: 

• The 2015 tentative abstract has been mailed to the state. 
• Board of Review Hearings for 2015 values will start on Monday, February 22nd 

and go through Thursday, February 25th. 
• Zoning did not have any ZBA Hearings or Adjudication Hearings in the month 

of February. 
• Chairman Jefferson asked for approval of a receipt for deposits turned into the 

Clerk’s office by the Zoning Dept. shown to the Committee by Gray after some 
issues they had.  Member Bondi made a motion to approve, seconded by 
Member Knapp.  Approved unanimously. 

• The Zoning Dept. issued 4 building permits for the month of January 2016 
compared to 10 building permits for the month of January 2015. 

• The ESRI & Sidwell mapping software upgrade for the GIS Dept. is almost 
complete.  Most of it went fairly well, with just a few problems with the FARMS 
software. 



 

 
• The US Census Bureau’s Boundary & Annexation Survey is being adjusted and 

will be submitted by Lotz, our GIS Coordinator this month. 
• The Galesburg Sanitary District contributed $1,000 to the GIS Dept. toward the 

new aerial photos that were flown in 2015. 
 

Nursing Home 
     Nursing Home Administrator, Rachel Secrist reported and presented bills for her 
department: 

• The current census at the Nursing Home is: 
Total -  135 patients   -    63 – Private / 9 -  Medicare / 63 – Medicaid  

• There have been 12 inquires for admittance into the Nursing Home. 
• There have been no Molina payments received in January or February.  Since all 

residents have been taken off Molina, Secrist is concerned that the Nursing Home 
will be at the bottom of the list for payment.  Member Bondi requested that 
Secrist research this issue and if no success with payment, to contact States 
Attorney Pepmeyer for legal counsel.   

• Revenue was down for this month, but one thing that contributed was a $37,000 
deduction from Medicare for a patient overpayment. 

• Total deposits to date total $320,000. 

• ACTION ITEM:  RESOLUTION FOR FUND TRANSFER FROM THE KNOX 
COUNTY NURSING HOME TAX LEVY ACCOUNT TO THE KNOX COUNTY 
NURSING HOME GENERAL ACCOUNT.  Motion made by Member Bondi to 
approve, seconded by Member Hunigan.  Motion approved unanimously.   

         
     The Recorder’s, Supervisor of Assessments, GIS, Zoning Dept. and Nursing Home 
bills were reviewed and a motion to approve for payment was made by Member 
Knapp, seconded by Member Bondi.  Motion approved unanimously. 
  
Old Business  
      None 
New Business  
       None 
 
     Chairman Jefferson reported to the Committee that prior to the next Committee 
Meeting on Tuesday, March 15th, at 5:30 p.m., the Committee and ALL COUNTY 
BOARD MEMBERS ARE INVITED TO THE KNOX COUNTY NURSING HOME FOR 
A TOUR OF THE FACILITIES. 
     Chairman Jefferson reported that the next Committee meeting will be on Tuesday, 
March 15th, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. at the Knox County Nursing Home. 
     Motion was made to adjourn the meeting by Member Bondi, seconded by Chairman 
Hunigan.  Motion approved unanimously.  Meeting was adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
       Chris Gray, Secretary 



ASSESSMENT / GIS / ZONING REPORT 

February 16, 2016 

 

ASSESSMENT OFFICE 

 

      The tentative abstract was finally mailed into the State today.  I printed it on 

December 22nd, and it took until Saturday, Feb. 13th to finish balancing it and 

researching all the changes from the final 2014 abstract.  If the state calls, I have to be 

prepared to answer any questions they may have.  I have been working on it in every 

spare minute I’ve had since I printed it, but we have just been so busy it took me this 

long to get it completed.      

      The Assessment Office has continued to stay busy this past month with taxpayers 

coming in and calling regarding their Board of Review appeals, getting tentative Board 

of Review decisions out, scheduling hearings, and also trying to start preparing for 

Board of Review hearings that begin on February 22nd.  We have 65 hearings that will 

last 3 ½ days.  Until Board of Review is over, all the final notices are mailed, the final 

state abstract has been created, balanced and mailed to the state, we cannot roll into our 

2016 assessment year. 

      

 

ZONING 

 

      The Zoning Board of Appeals did have any hearings for the month of February. 

      There were also no Adjudication Hearings in February. 

      The Zoning Dept. has continued to stay busy.  We have had quite a few violations 

turned into us over this past month.  Adjudication Hearing Notices have been mailed 

out and it appears we could have 3 or 4 hearings in February.   

      The Zoning Office issued 4 permits for the month of January 2016 compared to 10 

permits for the month of January 2015. 

 

 

GIS 

 

      Bill’s report is enclosed. 

       

 

            Respectfully submitted, 

        Chris Gray, CIAO/CCO 

        Chief County Assessment Officer 

        Zoning Admin./GIS Dept. Sup 



 

 GIS Report    February 16, 2016 

 

The software upgrade is mostly complete. I will update Chris’s computer when the office is a 

little less busy. For the Esri products, desktop and server, the update went very well. The Sidwell install 

was a little more problematic. The FARMS database upgrade that the performed ($750) went well, but 

the software install had a few problems. We went to a prelease service pack to get things done. They 

have since released the official service pack and I reinstalled the software and applied that latest service 

pack.  

Besides the server ESRI software upgrades we installed to new ESRI products, ArcGIS Portal 

and their Web Adapter (both included with ArcGIS Server). This was a complicated install and took a 

lot to get it working. Andy was very helpful and spent a lot of time getting things set up. I am just now 

starting the testing part and learning how things work. The Portal will allow us to give departments, such 

as the Highway department the ability to author their own web map, based on a template that I will 

create. This will allow them to have a map, that they can edit, available on their webpage. One use that I 

can envision is if a road is closed or to show upcoming construction projects. On a different project, I 

am going to make contour data available to the Highway Department for Jason to use in the drainage 

delineation that he uses to size culverts. 

The revenue from the GIS fee for January, the first month of the increase, is $7,641. In contrast, 

the fee for January of 2015 was just $3,762. We are up a little bit as to the number of documents that 

were recorded and hopefully the numbers will be good for the rest of the year. 

This month I will submit the U.S. Census Bureau’s Boundary and Annexation Survey (BAS). 

There were few changes, but I will also inspect the boundaries and submit any corrections. The 

Galesburg Sanitary District contributed $1,000 to help pay for last year’s aerial acquisition. The vendor 

for the Knox County Farm Bureau’s plat books has completed the project. As part of the data agreement 

they have shipped us some plat books and a wall map is on the way. The Galesburg Township 

Assessor’s office was having problems with their maps losing connectivity to the server. Looking at my 

server logs I did not see anything, so I suspect it is a network thing. One thing I will do is to upgrade 

their software to see if that helps. 

Sincerely, 
 
Bill Lotz  



Thursday, February 25th at 

 

 

 

Dine-In and Carry-Out: 4pm-6pm 

Delivery to City of Knoxville Residents 
(CALL AHEAD ONLY) 3pm-5pm 

 

Dine-In Menu (All-You-Can-Eat!):  

Ham & Beans, Cornbread, Dessert and Beverage-$8 

Carry out & Delivery Menu:  

Quart of Ham & Beans-$7 

Half Gallon Ham & Beans-$10 

 

For Delivery, please call 289-2338!!  

All Proceeds will go towards our New Van Fund!! 



for the Bus!! 

Jewelry Catalogue Party* 

Featuring Premier Designs Jewelry 

Friday, Feb. 26th @ 2:00 pm 

*percentage of sales will go to KCNH Van Fund  



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM  
KNOX COUNTY’S NURSING HOME TAX LEVY 
ACCOUNT TO THE KNOX COUNTY NURSING 

HOME’S GENERAL ACCOUNT 
 

 WHEREAS, the Knox County Nursing Home may experience a shortfall in its 
revenues, due to a variety of reasons, during the upcoming year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Knox County Nursing Home also presently has the sum of 
approximately $1.3 million dollars on hand in the Knox County Nursing Home’s tax levy 
account, which could be used for the purpose of the payment of expenses necessary for 
the care and maintenance of the home, as well as the personal care and nursing service of 
the patients therein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it would be more prudent to allow the Knox County Nursing Home 
to borrow from itself so as to avoid incurring the costs associated with other forms of 
borrowing. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Knox County Board that: 
 
 a.  Monies, on a revolving basis, as necessary, is authorized to be transferred  
 from time to time from the Knox County Nursing Home Tax Levy Account to   
 that of the Knox County Nursing Home General Account to meet current   
 expenses of the Knox County Nursing Home. 
 b.  The Knox County Treasurer is hereby authorized to make such transfers as 
 required to affect the intent of this Resolution. 
 c.  Any interest earned, however, on any monies loaned to the Knox County 
 Nursing Home General Account, which become invested by the Knox County 
 General Fund prior to expenditure and earn interest, shall be credited and 
 allocated to the Knox County Nursing Home Account. 
 d.  All monies transferred to and borrowed by the Knox County General Account 
 from the Knox County Nursing Home Tax Levy Account shall be repaid at the 
 earliest opportunity, but in any event all monies so borrowed shall be paid no later 
 than November 30, 2016. 
 
 Resolved and passed this 24th day of February, 2016. 
 
 Knox County Board       Attest: 
 
 
_________________________                                              ________________________ 
By: Brain Friedrich, Chairman    Scott Erickson, County Clerk 
 
 
 















































































































































































































































































KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE   200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET   GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 
(309) 345-3815   FAX: (309) 345-3801   WEBSITE:  WWW.KNOXCLERK.ORG 

 

THE COUNTY OF KNOX 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

 

SCOTT G. ERICKSON 
KNOX COUNTY CLERK 

 
SHIELA PARKIN   SARA VARNER 

PAM COON    JANE SMITH 
 

 

Knox County Board and Committee 
Meetings Calendar 

 
February 2016 

 
The following is a list of the meetings of the standing Committees for the Knox 
County Board for the above referenced month. 

 
 
Building Committee 
 February 9, 2016 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:30PM 
 
Nursing Home-Assessor-Zoning-GIS-Recorder Committee 

February 16, 2016 at the Bondi Building Conference Room. Starting at 6:30PM 
 
Sheriff-Jail-Courthouse-Mary Davis Home-Animal Control-Annex Committee  

February 15, 2016 at the Annex Conference Room. Starting at 6:00 PM 
 
Highway-Landfill Committee 

February 16, 2016 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:30 PM 
 
Finance-Insurance-Treasurer-Judicial-Clerk Committee 

February 10, 2016 at the Annex Conference Room at 6:30PM (Budget Mtg) 
February 17, 2016 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:30 PM 

 
Knox County Board Meeting – Regular Meeting 

February 24, 2016 at the Knox County Courthouse.  Starting at 6:00 PM 
 

Outside Committees 
 
Knox County Veterans Assistance Commission Meeting. 

February 8, 2016 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:00 PM. 
  
Board of Health Meeting. 
 February 11, 2016 at the County Health Department. Starting at 7:00PM. 
 


	Board Packet Cover - February 2016
	Board Call - February 2016
	Agenda - February 2016
	Board Minutes - January 2016
	Closed Board Minutes - January 2016
	Action Item - Appointment Galesburg Sanitary
	Action Item - Appointment Williamsfield FPD
	Finance Committee Minutes February 2016
	Finance Committee Minutes - January 2016
	Minutes - Budget Meeting -Feb 2016
	Financial Reports - Thru January 2016
	Trustee Report - February 2016
	Action Item - Animal Kill Claims for 2015
	Action Item - Deeds of Conveyance
	Action Item - Resolution on Juror Fees
	Action Item - Resolution on MFT Aggregates
	Action Item - Resolution on Motor Fuel Maintenance
	Building Committee Minutes - February 2016
	Action Item - RESOLUTION Authorizing additional gate fee at Landfill for Building Fund 2016
	Sheriff Committee Minutes - February 2016
	Sheriff Department Report - February 2016
	Mary David Home Report - February 2016
	Assessor Nursing Home Committee Minutes - February 2016
	Assessment Report - February 2016
	GIS Report - February 2016
	Nursing Home Fyler - Ham and Beans
	Nursing Home - BLING 4 BUS SIGN
	Action Item - Resolution Authorizing Transfer from NH Ref Fund to NH Fund 2016
	Highway Department Report - February 2016
	Landfill -February 2016 Financial Reports
	Action Item -  Budgt Changes - February 2016
	Action Item - Summary Sheets - February 2016
	Meeting Calendar - February 2016

	Return to agenda: 


